Attachment A – RFP Cover Page and Declaration
The Vendor must complete and submit this Attachment.  This Attachment shall be the cover page for the Vendor’s Proposal.  

	Request for Proposal 
	 0920000226

	RFP Name
	 Vendor Solicitation Response Submission



	Vendor Name:
	[bookmark: Text1]     

	Address:
	     

	City:
	     

	State:
	     

	Zip Code:
	     

	Point of Contact for this RFP:
	     

	Phone:
	     

	Fax:
	     

	Email:
	     



The following documents are required for this proposal (please mark off each document to acknowledge that you have submitted the document in the proper format):
	[bookmark: Check15]|_|
	Attachment A
	Complete and staple as cover page in your proposal (no binders)

	|_|
	Attachment B
	Fill in all required information on Cost Proposal Form

	|_|
	Attachment C
	Fill in all required information on Contract Schedule 

	|_|
	Attachment D
	Complete and submit the Project Capability Checklist which includes:  Level of Expertise, Risk Assessment, and Value Added.  

	|_|
	Attachment E
	Complete and submit Level of Expertise Capability Information.  Submit references for each LE claim listed.

	|_|
	Attachment F
	Complete and submit Risk Assessment Information

	|_|
	Attachment G
	Complete and submit Value Added Information





Attachment B – Cost Proposal and Supplier Information
PROJECT COST PROPOSAL

Year 1: Project Rate:        / Initial Implementation
Year 2: Project Rate:        / Annual Service Renewal
Year 3: Project Rate:        / Annual Service Renewal
Year 4: Project Rate:        / Annual Service Renewal


CRITICAL INDIVIDUAL COMPONENTS
	
Name of Vendor:
	     

	

Name of Critical Individual 1:
	     

	Name of Critical Individual 2:
	     

	
	     





Attachment C – Contract Schedule
CONTRACT DURATION

Respondent must also attach a draft project MILESTONE schedule that starts from the anticipated authorization to proceed date to completion of service.

Contract Duration:         (Calendar Days) 
Note:  The Contract Duration should include the total time from the anticipated authorization to proceed date to substantial completion.  This must include time to complete all of the steps of the executive search process.
Contract Duration (Total Time):        (Calendar Days) 
Respondent must also attach a draft project MILESTONE schedule that starts from the anticipated authorization to proceed date to completion of service.


Attachment D
Level of Expertise, Risk Assessment, and Value Added     Submittal Checklist and Format

The Respondent must complete and submit this checklist along with the Level of Expertise (LE),  Risk Assessment (RA), and Value Added (VA) Submittal.  This Checklist is not counted in the 6-page LE, RA, VA submittal limit.  Failing to answer, or answering “No” to any of the questions below may result in disqualification.
Level of Expertise is 2 pages each
Risk Assessment is 2 pages each
Value Added is 2 pages each

	1. Is your LE, RA, VA Submittal 6 pages or less?
	|_|
	Yes
	|_|
	No

	2. Do you understand that your LE, RA, VA Submittal can NOT contain any names, past projects, or information that may used to identify who your firm is?  
	|_|
	Yes
	|_|
	No

	3. Do you understand that you have to use the LE, RA, VA Submittal templates provided in this RFP and that you are NOT allowed to re-create the Submittal Templates (cannot alter font size, add colors, add pictures, etc) or handwrite your responses?
	|_|
	Yes
	|_|
	No

	4. Do you understand that the contents of LE, RA, VA Submittal will become part of the Contract?
	|_|
	Yes
	|_|
	No

	5. Do you understand that your Proposal may be disqualified if you fail to meet any of the above requirements?
	|_|
	Yes
	|_|
	No


   


Attachment E
Level of Expertise Plan
This template should be used.  The Level of Expertise Plan should identify the Respondent’s capability to meet the project’s requirements with a plan that meets time and cost goals.  The capability claims should be prioritized (list the most important claims first).  The Respondent may add or delete Level of Expertise Claim table templates, but do not exceed the 2-page limit for this section.  Do NOT include any identifying information in your Plan.  Information listed under the “Documented Performance” line may describe where the Respondent has used the approach or solution previously, and what the results were in terms of verifiable metrics.
Example (this example can be deleted to accommodate more claims)
	Level of Expertise Plan:
	We have a significant amount of experience in social media projects and consistently deliver high performance

	Documented Performance:
	We have completed 45 social media projects in the past two years with a 0.5% cost deviation and 2% schedule deviation.  Overall customer satisfaction rating of 9.5 out of 10 for these 45 projects.





Level of Expertise #1 Claim:          
Documented Performance:        	
Level of Expertise #2 Claim:        
Documented Performance :       	
Level of Expertise #3 Claim:       
Documented Performance:       	
Level of Expertise #4 Claim:       
Documented Performance:       	
Level of Expertise #5 Claim:       	
Documented Performance:       
Level of Expertise #6 Claim:       
Documented Performance:       
Level of Expertise #7 Claim:       
Documented Performance:       
Level of Expertise #8 Claim:       
Documented Performance:       


Attachment F
Risk Assessment Plan
This template should be used.  The Risk Assessment Plan should address the risks that the Respondent does NOT control.  The risks should be prioritized (list the greatest risks first).  The Respondent may add or delete Risk table templates, but do not exceed the 2-page limit for this section.  Do NOT include any identifying information in the Plan.  Information listed under the “Documented Performance” line may describe where the Respondent has used the approach or solution previously, and what the results were in terms of verifiable metrics.
Example (this example can be deleted to accommodate more claims)
	Risk Description:
	Risk that is not identified by client professional, competing vendors, or expert vendor will be identified and solved within 3 days maximum (unless more time is justified and requested).

	Risk Impact / Why is this a Risk?
	Unforeseen circumstances/risks may cause a deviation to our planned baseline expectations.

	
Solution:
	Once we are notified of a change, we will take the following action:
1.  Vendor shall immediately notify the State the same day as discovery of potential cost and time impact.
2. Vendor shall find best possible options to minimize risk, with accompanying cost and time.
3. Vendor will then present to State with justification as to why the best.

	Documented Performance:
	We use this approach as part of every project we complete. We have had to use the approach 15 times over the past 3 years. Our solution resulted in less than 1% change orders, and 100% of the clients on these 15 projects rated our performance 10 out of 10.

	Risk Description #1:
	
     

	Risk Impact / Why is this a Risk?
	
     

	Solution:
	     

	Documented Performance:
	
     

	Risk Description #2:
	
     

	Risk Impact / Why is this a Risk?
	
     

	Solution:
	     

	Documented Performance:
	
     

	
Risk Description #3:
	

     

	Risk Impact / Why is this a Risk?
	
     

	Solution:
	     

	Documented Performance:
	
     



Attachment G
Value Added Plan
This template must be used.  The Value Added Plan should identify any value added options or ideas that may benefit the Owner.  The value added claims should be prioritized (identify the most important claims first).  The Respondent may add or delete Value Added Claim table templates, but do not exceed the 2-page limit for this section.  Do NOT include any identifying information in the Plan.  Information listed under the “Documented Performance” line may describe where the Respondent has used the approach or solution previously, and what the results were in terms of verifiable metrics.
Example (this example can be deleted to accommodate more claims)
	Item Claim:
	This would be the place to offer service/package/optional remittance method (etc) not requested in the solicitation-insert description here

	How will this add value?
	How would the item described above add value to the State’s contract?

	Documented Performance:
	State in general terms  where offered and the results

	Cost Impact (%):
	What is cost or hourly rate?
	           Schedule Impact (%):  
	What is the unit of measure for the cost?

	Item #1 Claim:
	     

	How will this add value?
	[bookmark: Text2]     

	Documented Performance:
	[bookmark: Text3]     

	Cost Impact (%):  
	[bookmark: Text4]     
	             Schedule Impact (%):  
	[bookmark: Text5]     

	
	

	Item #2 Claim:
	     

	How will this add value?
	     

	Documented Performance:
	     

	Cost Impact (%):  
	     
	             Schedule Impact (%):  
	     

	
	

	Item #3 Claim:
	     

	How will this add value?
	     

	Documented Performance:
	     

	Cost Impact (%):  
	     
	             Schedule Impact (%):  
	     

	
	

	Item #4 Claim:
	     

	How will this add value?
	     

	Documented Performance:
	     

	Cost Impact (%):  
	     
	             Schedule Impact (%):  
	     

	
	

	Item #5 Claim:
	     

	How will this add value?
	     

	Documented Performance:
	     

	Cost Impact (%):  
	     
	             Schedule Impact (%):  
	     



Attachment H
Clarification / Pre-Award Phase Guide

1.  Overview

a. The clarification/Pre-Award Period is not a negotiation period.  Respondent will not be permitted to modify their cost/fee/financial rate, project durations, or project team unless the State requests changes.  The Clarification/Pre-Award Period is started by the notification of the best value vendor, and ended by the final presentation to the State after all issues have been addressed.  If the State is not satisfied during the Clarification/Pre-Award Phase, or upon completion of the Pre-Award Meeting, the State may consider another Respondent for potential award (this Respondent would also have to conduct a Pre-Award Meeting).  If the State is satisfied with the potential best-value Respondent, they will proceed to issue and Award and Contract.
b. The Pre-Award Phase is carried out prior to the signing of the contract.  The State’s objective is to have the project/service completed on time, without any contractor cost increases, and with high customer satisfaction.  At the end of the project, the State will evaluate the performance of the Respondent based on these factors, so it is very important that the Respondent preplans the project to ensure there are no surprises.
c. It is the Respondent’s responsibility to ensure it understands the scope of the project and clearly identify what they are delivering. It is the State’s responsibility to ensure that it conveys any potential concerns and issues before the contract is signed.  It is the Respondent’s responsibility to manage and mitigate the risk of the project.
d. The Pre-Award Phase provides the Respondent with a final opportunity to identify “what is in” and “what is out” of their proposal.  This is attached with a milestone schedule and a cost, and proposed schedule of values.  The State has the right to accept or deny this proposal.  The State also has a right identify their perceived risks, concerns, and issues which it will require the Respondent to mitigate and manage.  The major products of the Pre-Award Period include the scope of the project, the milestone schedule, the Risk Management Plan (RMP), the cost breakout of the project, and the weekly risk report (WRR).  The pre-planning should include all coordination and identification of all risks that cannot be controlled by the Respondent. 
e. In many cases, one of the Respondent’s biggest risks (in terms of delivering the service with high satisfaction) is the State.  Therefore, it is in the Respondent’s best interest to identify any issues or concerns ahead of time during the pre-award phase.  The Respondent should minimize their risk by creating documentation that assists them to be proactive in mitigating risk.

2. Pre-Planning and Coordination

a. Respondents may be required to provide the State with supporting documentation of any information listed in their submittals before entering the Pre-Award Phase.

b. Once the best value Respondent is notified, the State may provide a list of risks identified by the other Respondents and a list of any State issues or concerns.
c. The State requires that the Respondent attend a Kick-Off Meeting to present their proposal, the milestone schedule, their risk management plan (RMP), and to seek additional issues or concerns that the State may have.  It is also an opportunity to meet all participants who may be a stakeholder in the project. The Respondent is required to perform the following functions as part of, or in preparation for, this Kick-Off Meeting:
i. Ensure that the State Project Manager has invited all State stakeholders and participants to the meeting.
ii. Present the scope of their services (“what is in” and “what is out”).
iii. Present their milestone schedule and their risk management plan (RMP).  This includes risks and potential mitigation to the risks.
iv. Identify State responsibilities.
v. Present their Weekly Risk Report (WRR) format.
vi. Identify any risks presented by State.
vii. Listen to concerns, issues, and comments from stakeholders.
viii. Propose a schedule to finalize Pre-Award Period and the contract documents.
d. Once the Pre-Award Kick-Off meeting is held, and if the State is comfortable with the Respondent’s proposal, the Pre-Award Phase begins. The Respondent will be required to complete the following:
i. Revisit the site/buildings/campus to do any additional investigating (if applicable).
ii. Coordinate with all parties that will be involved with the project.
iii. Resolve concerns and issues they have with mitigating actions.
iv. Finalize the Pre-Award Documents (contract, WRR, Milestone schedule, RMP, project scope)

3. Pre-Award Documents
The final Pre-Award Document will include the following:
a. Finalized scope documents
b. Risk Management Plan (RMP)
c. Milestone schedule
d. Weekly Risk Report form (WWR)
e. Project financial summary
i. The Respondents Original Project Rates
ii. A list of agreed/accepted Value Added Options (with impact to cost)
iii. A list of agreed upon Scope Changes or Additional Work (if applicable and with impact to cost)
iv. A schedule of values
f. Complete detailed project or services schedule
g. Project action item checklist of State actions
h. Project and emergency contact list

4. Pre-Award Meeting
a. The Pre-Award Summary Meeting is held at the end of the pre-award phase and is used to present a summary of what was developed and agreed upon during the pre-award phase.  The pre-award meeting is not a question and answer session.  The Respondent and State stakeholders must not wait for the meeting to ask questions. All coordination and planning with the State should be done prior to the meeting.
b. The Respondent should give a presentation, which walks the State through the entire project and summarizes all of the coordination/planning done during the pre-award period. The Respondent should bring their team and all the documents specified in the Pre-Award Document.  The Respondent should come with documents explaining what the State is responsible for in this project and should identify exactly what they want from the State with due dates.  The Respondent must convince the State that they have minimized all risks and will not be surprised once the project begins.  The pre-award meeting presentation (and meeting minutes, if applicable) will become part of the contract along with the other documents stated the Pre-Award Document.




Attachment I
Weekly Risk Report (WRR)
Overview
The Weekly Risk Reporting System (WRRS) is a companion to the QC Plan that is created by the best value Respondent during the Pre-Award Phase.  The report serves as a tool for the Owner in analyzing the performance of each Project based on risk.  The WRRS does not substitute or eliminate weekly progress reports or any other traditional reporting system (that the Respondent may do).  
The purpose of the WRRS is to allow the Respondent to manage and document all risks that occur throughout a Project.  Risk is defined as anything that impacts the Project cost or Project schedule.  This includes risks that are caused by the contractor (or entities contracted by the contractor), and risks that are caused by the Owner (scope changes, unforeseen conditions, etc).  The Owner Project Manager may also require the Respondent to document risks that may impact Owner satisfaction.
Submission
The weekly report is an excel file that must be submitted on the Friday of every week.  The report is due every week once the authorization to proceed is issued, until the Project is 100% complete (and final payment is made).  Please contact the State Project Manager if you have not received an electronic version of the spreadsheet (once the authorization to proceed has been issued).  
The completed report must be saved using the date and name of the Project given by the State (Format: YYMMDD_Project Name_Project ID; For example, ‘Polk Project’ for the week ending Friday, March 1, 2005, should be labeled ’050301_PolkProject_01-123-45-6789’).  Weekly Reports are to be emailed (by midnight each Friday). Awarded supplier will be notified after award of the contact person to email these reports to.    
[bookmark: _GoBack] 
Online Guide and Tutorial
A short video tutorial is also available online which provides information on the reporting system.  Respondents are required to watch this video prior to completing/submitting the weekly reports.
The weekly report consists of scope changes or unforeseen events that are risks to the Project in terms of cost, schedule, or State satisfaction including any issues that could potentially develop into a risk.  When a new issue is identified, it is added to the Project risks, along with the following: Identification date (date the risk was identified), plan to minimize the risk, resolution due date, impact to critical path or schedule (in days), and impact to final cost (in dollars).
Prior to submitting the report, the Respondent must contact the State Project Manager if there are any risks or potential risks identified.  The Project Manager is required to provide a satisfaction rating based on the identified risk and the Respondents plan to mitigate the risk.  The rating is based on a scale of 1-10 (10 being completely satisfied and 1 being completely dissatisfied).  The Project Manager may modify their satisfaction ratings at any time throughout the Project.  When a risk is resolved, the actual date of resolution must be listed.  
The Respondent is also required to submit a detailed Project schedule (including the authorization to proceed date, substantial completion date, and final payment date) in the weekly report.  The schedule report must contain the Respondents original schedule along with the current estimated schedule.
The State will analyze the reports for accuracy and timeliness.  The report will be used in part by the Owner to determine the overall final performance rating of the Respondent (and its team).  

 
